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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

FORT LAUDERDALE DIVISION 

    

 

APRIL THOMAS 

Plaintiff 

v. 

ROBIN R. WEINER, P.A.  

Defendant 

CASE NO:  

 

 

COMPLAINT  

JURY TRIAL DEMAND  

 

 

 

 

 

COMPLAINT  
Plaintiff April Thomas, by and through her undersigned counsel, hereby brings suit 

against Robin R. Weiner, P.A. (“Defendant”) and states as follows:  

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1. This is an action by Plaintiff against her former employer for pregnancy 

discrimination and promissory estoppel.   

THE PARTIES 

2. Defendant Robin R. Weiner, P.A. is a Florida professional association and a law firm, 

which serves as the Standing Chapter 13 Trustee for the United States District Court 

for the Southern District of Florida, Fort Lauderdale and Palm Beach Divisions.  
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Robin R. Weiner, P.A. maintains its principal place of business in the city of 

Plantation, Broward County, Florida.   

3. April Thomas is, and at all times material hereto was, a resident of Broward County, 

Florida.   

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331, 1343(a)(3)and (4), and Title 

VII.  The Court's supplemental jurisdiction is invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1367. 

5. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because the unlawful 

conduct complained of in this Complaint arose in the Fort Lauderdale Division of the 

Southern District of Florida, where the Plaintiff was employed, where plaintiff resides 

and where Defendant maintains its principal place of business.  

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

6. On May 10, 2012 Plaintiff timely filed her written Charge of Discrimination with the 

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”).   

7. On April 23, 2013, the EEOC issued Plaintiff a Notice of Right to Sue.  See Exhibit A.  

FACTUAL BACKGROUND  

Plaintiff’s History with Robin R. Weiner, P.A.  

8. Plaintiff worked for Defendant from January 2007 through her termination in June 

2012.  During this time, Plaintiff repeatedly received favorable performance reviews 

and repeatedly was promoted.   

9. In January 2007, Plaintiff first began working for Defendant as a receptionist and 

remained in that capacity for approximately eight months.  
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10. In September 2007, Robin Weiner, the principal of Robin R. Weiner, P.A., promoted 

Plaintiff to a position in the accounting department as an accounting poster, which 

offered a higher salary.      

11. In March 2008, Plaintiff was promoted to the position of claims administrator, which 

offered a higher salary. 

12. In October 2010, after working as a claims administrator for more than two years, 

Plaintiff was promoted to the position of case administrator, which offered a higher 

salary.   

13. Plaintiff worked for Defendant as a case administrator from October 2010 until she 

was terminated in June 2012, shortly after returning from maternity leave.   

Plaintiff’s Pregnancy 

14. During a January 2012 staff meeting, at which time a fellow staff member was 

pregnant, Robin Weiner remarked, “I am going to stop hiring young girls because they 

have too many babies.  Every time I turn around someone else is pregnant.”   

15. A few weeks later, when Plaintiff walked into the office kitchen during her lunch 

break, Weiner remarked to a supervisor, “Don’t worry.  We will wait until after she 

has the baby to deal with her.”   

16. These remarks by Weiner were prescient:  Over the past year, Weiner has terminated 

at least two women who either were pregnant or had recently given birth.   

17. On June 13, 2011, Plaintiff learned that she was pregnant.   

18. When Weiner learned of Plaintiff’s pregnancy, Weiner immediately began to express 

a new interest in Plaintiff’s personal life, repeatedly asking about Plaintiff’s then-

fiancé.   
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19. Weiner wanted to know where the fiancé worked; what kind of car he drove; and how 

many children he had.  Weiner also asked about when the wedding would occur.   

20. In February 2012, at which point Plaintiff was eight months pregnant, Weiner again 

began prodding Plaintiff about when the wedding would occur. 

21. On February 27, Weiner called an office meeting, which Plaintiff was required to 

attend.  

22. Because her feet were swollen due to pregnancy, Plaintiff was wearing open toed-

shoes.   

23. Weiner reprimanded Plaintiff, indicating that if she caught Plaintiff wearing open toed 

shoes again, Plaintiff would be fired. 

24. Shortly thereafter, Plaintiff’s doctor placed Plaintiff on bed rest and provided her with 

a doctor’s note to give to her employer. 

25. Plaintiff returned to the office and provided the doctor’s note to Weiner, at which 

point Weiner instructed Plaintiff to go home on maternity leave.  

Plaintiff’s Leave from Work 

26. The Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual, or employee handbook, for Robin R. 

Weiner, P.A. contains a section titled Family and Medical Leave. See Exhibit B.  

27. This section of the handbook indicates:  

“Because the Trusteeship does not employee 50 employees, it is not required to 

provide leave under the Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), however, the Trustee 

has chosen to provide leave for the following reasons:”   

28. The handbook then indicates that up to eight weeks leave will be provided for the 

“[b]irth or a child or care of a newborn child.” 
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29. Based on Defendant’s representation that it was not required to provide FMLA leave 

but had chosen to provide such leave, and provide leave consistent with the terms of 

the FMLA, Plaintiff reasonably believed that she was covered by the FMLA and 

entitled to take leave consistent with the terms of the FMLA.   

30. When Plaintiff knew that she would need time off because of her pregnancy, she gave 

Robin Weiner advanced notice regarding the need for such leave.   

31. In taking leave because of her pregnancy, Plaintiff reasonably believed that she was 

taking leave under FMLA and reasonably believed that Defendant would honor the 

terms of the FMLA, consistent with the representations contained in the employee 

handbook.   

Plaintiff’s Termination 

32. On March 9, 2012, Plaintiff gave birth to a baby girl.   

33. Plaintiff returned to work eight weeks later, on April 23, 2012.   

34. At the time Plaintiff returned to work, Robin Weiner was on vacation.  Weiner did not 

return to the office until late May 2012.  

35. Immediately upon Weiner’s return, Weiner asked Plaintiff if she was happy to be back 

at work.  Plaintiff responded that she was.   

36. Weiner then asked Plaintiff if she had a picture of her daughter.  Plaintiff indicated 

that she did not have a picture right at that moment. 

37. Weiner then indicated that if Plaintiff did not immediately bring her a picture of her 

daughter, Plaintiff would be fired.  

38. The following day, Plaintiff brought a picture of her daughter to work to show Weiner. 
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39. Approximately one week later, on June 6, 2012, Weiner confronted Plaintiff and told 

Plaintiff, “You better fight for your job.  You have no idea what others did for you 

while you were out on maternity leave.”  

40. That same day, Defendant terminated Plaintiff’s employment.  

41. Following her termination from Robin Weiner, P.A., Plaintiff unsuccessfully 

attempted to find work at bankruptcy law firms throughout south Florida.   

42. For nearly a year, Plaintiff was unable to find a job in the bankruptcy law field 

because of her termination from Robin Weiner, P.A. and the prominent role that 

Weiner plays in the south Florida bankruptcy law community.   

43. Unable to find a job to support herself and her newborn child, Plaintiff allowed her 

daughter to go live with Plaintiff’s mother in Tampa until Plaintiff could secure new 

employment. 

44. Eventually, Plaintiff obtained new employment in the legal field, earning less than half 

of what she earned when she was terminated from Robin R. Weiner, P.A.  

Defendant’s Continued Harassment of Plaintiff 

45. In late April 2013, the EEOC closed its file on Plaintiff’s complaint and issued 

Plaintiff a Notice of Right to Sue.   

46. At approximately this same time, attorneys for Defendant began contacting Plaintiff’s 

new employer, purportedly in-connection with investigating the EEOC charge that had 

been filed against Defendants.  

47. Two weeks after the EEOC’s investigation was closed, attorneys for Defendant 

continued to harass Plaintiff’s new employer, insisting that Plaintiff’s new employer 
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sign a declaration regarding what Plaintiff had said about her termination from Robin 

R. Weiner, P.A., if anything, during the course of her hiring interview.   

48. As the EEOC investigation into the charge of discrimination was closed, Defendant’s 

actions in pressing for such a declaration were undertaken solely for the purpose of 

harassing and intimidating Plaintiff.   

49. As a result of the loss of her job, her time spent unemployed, her separation from her 

child, her difficulty finding new employment because of Robin Weiner’s standing in 

the bankruptcy community and Defendant’s continued harassment at her new place of 

work, Plaintiff has been damaged.   

COUNT I 
 

PREGNANCY DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF  
TITLE VII, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000(e), ET SEQ. 

  
 

50. Plaintiff realleges the foregoing as if fully set forth herein.  

51. Defendant, at all times material hereto, was an “Employer” as that term is defined by 

Title VII and employed fifteen (15) or more Employees for purposes of coverage 

under Title VII.   

52. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was a pregnant female and therefore, protected 

from discrimination under Title VII.  

53. Plaintiff was qualified for her position and capably performed her job duties with 

Robin R. Weiner, P.A.  

54. Defendant discriminated against Plaintiff on the basis of her pregnancy and terminated 

her employment because of her pregnancy, her request for pregnancy leave, and her 

use of pregnancy leave.  

55. In terminating Plaintiff, Defendant treated Plaintiff less than favorably than non-



8 
 

pregnant employees with temporary disabilities or who needed medical care. 

56. Defendant’s actions directly and proximately have caused, and continue to cause, 

Thomas to suffer loss of employment, loss of income, loss of fringe benefits, 

emotional distress, humiliation, great expense, embarrassment and damage to her 

reputation. 

57. Defendant engaged in this discriminatory course of conduct with malice and/or 

reckless indifference to Thomas’ legal rights, thus entitling Thomas to punitive 

damages.  

COUNT II 
 

PROMISSORY ESTOPPEL 
 

58. Plaintiff realleges the foregoing as if fully set forth herein.  

59. Defendant, through its employee handbook, represented to Plaintiff that Plaintiff was 

eligible for eight weeks of job-protected maternity leave, consistent with the terms of 

the FMLA.  

60. Plaintiff reasonably relied upon these representations, gave notice regarding her need 

for such leave, was granted such leave and took such leave.   

61. Subsequently, Defendant terminated Plaintiff’s employment because Plaintiff became 

pregnant and exercised the right to utilize maternity leave as indicated in the 

handbook. 

62. As a result of Plaintiff’s reasonable reliance on Defendant’s promises and Defendant’s 

failure to honor those promises, Plaintiff has been damaged in an amount to be 

determined at trial.   
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief in the form of economic damages, back pay and 

front pay, equitable relief, reinstatement, prejudgment interest, attorney's fees and costs, 

liquidated damages and any other such relief that the Court deems just and proper. 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMAND 

Plaintiff demands a jury trial for all issues so triable.  

 

Dated: July 3, 2013      Respectfully submitted, 

 

        By: s/ Jonathan Pollard___ 

        Jonathan E. Pollard 
        Florida Bar No. 83613 
        Jonathan Pollard LLC  
        jpollard@pollardllc.com  

401 E. Las Olas Blvd. #1400 
        Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
        Telephone: 954-332-2380 
        Facsimile: 866-594-5731 
      

Attorney for Plaintiff   
 


